Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes

March 9, 2022

Members present: Chairman Linda Murray, Dave Senecal, Brad Harriman, Luke

Freudenberg and Brian Deshaies.

Staff present: Town Manager, James S. Pineo, Public Works Director David

Ford, Parks & Recreation Director Christine Collins, Fire Chief Thomas Zotti, Police Chief Dean Rondeau and Recording

Secretary, Amelia Capone-Muccio.

Chairman Murray opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.

Non-Public Session RSA 91 A: 3 e

Mr. Pineo stated a non-public session is needed under

Chairman Murray stated a non-public session is needed under c & e.

1. Consideration of Minutes

> February 16,2022

Chairman Murray amended page ten under Committee Reports in the last sentence to include "at Carry Beach" after swim line.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the minutes of February 16, 2022 as amended. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

> February 23,2022

Chairman Murray amended page two, the second paragraph under discussion, to "they" after if and before sign.

It was moved by Dave Senecal and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the minutes of February 23, 2022 as amended. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

2. Public Hearing(s)

Unanticipated Funds

i. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at a meeting that begins at 6:30 PM at the Great Hall Town Hall, 84 South Main Street, Wolfeboro, New Hampshire for the acceptance of unanticipated funds in excess of \$10,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b III (a), relative to a grant to purchase thirty four AED's for the Town of Wolfeboro through the ARPA SFRF Locality Equipment Matching Program. The total expenditure is \$47,601.44. The State (GOFERR) will reimburse 90% (\$42,842) and the town's share is 10% (\$4760). The following will be purchased:

Eight designated units to Fire/Rescue and will be located at/on:

- 1. Engine 1
- 2. Engine 2
- 3. Engine 4
- 4. Ladder 1
- 5. Utility 1
- 6. Car 1
- 7. Boat 1 (summer)/Snowmobile (winter)
- 8. Boat 2/Gator/Ranger

Twelve DefibTech Lifeline AEDs fixed (wall) mount units will be located:

- 1. Town Hall Great Hall
- 2. Town Hall First Floor
- 3. Transfer Station
- 4. Water Treatment Plant
- 5. Public Works Garage
- 6. Highway Garage
- 7. Wastewater Treatment Plant
- 8. Public Safety Building Lobby
- 9. Fire substation
- 10. Libby Museum
- 11. Library
- 12. Parks and Rec Maintenance

Fourteen mobile units located in:

- 1. 11- Police cruisers
- 2. 3- Highway Foreman vehicles

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Chief Zotti addressed the Board to providing a brief summary on the history of this grant. He stated in looking at the need to replace old units the Fire Station, it was learned at a Joint Loss Management Committee meeting that other departments had a

need for some units, which led to the grant. He stated the reason some departments are not listed such as Parks and Recreation, is because they have AED's that are current

Being no others to speak for or against the grant, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Mr. Senecal questioned why you would put one at the Fire substation.

Chief Zotti replied, they are there sometimes and if they had a limit on the purchase he would chose not to fund this location.

Mr. Harriman questioned if there will be training for the staff.

Chief Zotti replied that yes there will be the introductory training for the AED's as they are mean to be used by laypersons. They are working on putting together a CPR training course.

Chairman Murray questioned if these will be posted to the individual budgets.

Mr. Pineo replied yes, they would be allocated to the individual budgets. He noted the Municipal Electric Department is also excluded from the list as they already have them.

It was moved by Dave Senecal and seconded by Brian Deshaies the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen authorize the purchase of thirty four AED's for the Town of Wolfeboro through the ARPA SFRF Locality Equipment Matching Program. The total expenditure is \$47,601.44. The State (GOFERR) will reimburse 90% (\$42,842) and the town's share is 10% (\$4760). Members voted, being all in favor, the motion passed.

ii. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at their meeting, which starts at 6:30 PM in the Great Hall Town Hall, 84 South Main Street, Wolfeboro, New Hampshire for the acceptance of unanticipated funds in excess of \$10,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b III (a), relative to unanticipated grant funds in the amount of \$100,000 (estimated) for the Wolfeboro Bay Watershed Management Plan project.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Mr. Pineo stated this grant was funded for the Wolfeboro Bay Watershed Management plan.

Chairman Murray noted she was glad to know they will be getting support from the Lake Winnipesaukee Association, and there being no further discussion she closed the public hearing.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to accept the unanticipated funds in excess of \$10,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b III (a), relative to unanticipated grant funds in the

amount of \$ 100,000 (estimated) for the Wolfeboro Bay Watershed Management Plan project. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

iii. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at their meeting, which starts at 6:30 PM in the Great Hall Town Hall, 84 South Main Street, Wolfeboro, New Hampshire for the acceptance of unanticipated funds in excess of \$10,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b III (a), relative to unanticipated grant funds up to \$322,164 from the Department of Environmental Services for Water System Grant projects.

Chairman Murray opened the Public Hearing.

Dave Ford addressed the Board to discuss the grant. He stated the department has applied for five projects as follows: \$82,000 for asset management grant, \$20,000 for water audit grant, \$20,000 for energy audit, \$200,000 for energy audit implementation and \$50,000 for strategic planning grant. They have heard back from two, one they received and one they did not. \$82,000 for asset management has been granted and \$50,000 has been denied. He stated that he is still waiting to hear on the others.

Chairman Murray questioned if the hydro turbine will take a lot of energy and if he discussed this with the Director of the Municipal Electric Department. She also noted that solar power carries a number of restrictions.

Mr. Ford replied he doesn't see it as an issue but would check.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

It was moved by Luke Freudenberg and seconded by Brian Deshaies for the Wolfeboro
Board of Selectmen to accept unanticipated funds in excess of \$10,000 in accordance
with RSA 31:95-b III (a), relative to unanticipated grant funds up to \$322,164 from the
Department of Environmental Services for Water System Grant projects. Members voted,
being all in favor, the motion passed.

v. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing on Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at approximately 6:30 PM in the Great Hall of the Wolfeboro Town Hall for the acceptance of unanticipated funds for an amount awarded that is less than \$5,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b, relative to the donation of tower pads for Abenaki Twister ski guns values at \$3,817.44.

Chairman Murray opened the Public Hearing.

Christine Collins addressed the Board to state that with the expansion of Abenaki, the Friends of Pop Whalen donated tower pads for safety.

Being no others to speak for or against the donation, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to accept unanticipated funds for an amount awarded that is less than \$5,000 in accordance with RSA 31:95-b, relative to the donation of tower pads for Abenaki Twister ski guns valued at \$3,817.44. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

Temporary Event Permits

i The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to consider a Temporary Event Permit for the Daniel Webster Council BSA, to host a Fishing Derby at Dockside and the Community Bandstand from May 13-15, 2022 from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM. Permit #2022-21

Chairman Murray opened the Public Hearing.

Ray Meyer addressed the Board to speak to the permit request and stated they are requesting the same use as in years past. He stated that with advance technology they have the ability to keep real time scoring.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the Public Hearing. She noted the docks are under construction.

Mr. Ford replied that construction should be completed by May 15th.

It was moved by Brad Harriman and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro of Selectmen to grant a Temporary Event Permit for the Daniel Webster Council BSA, to host a Fishing Derby at Dockside and the Community Bandstand from May 13-15, 2022 from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM. Permit #2022-21. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

ii. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to consider a Temporary Event Permit for the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation to host a Fundraising walk on May 14th, 2022 from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM starting from Foss Field along the Bridge Falls Path and Cotton Valley Trail. Permit # 2022-22

Chairman Murray opened the Public Hearing.

Deanne Viscariello addressed the Board virtually to speak, but unfortunately her sound was not working.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing. She noted that sidewalks on Crescent Lake Ave should not be coned off.

It was moved by Linda Murray and seconded by Brian Deshaies that the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to grant a Temporary Event Permit for the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation to host a Fundraising walk on May 14th, 2022 from 9:00 AM to 2:00 PM starting from Foss Field along the Bridge Falls Path and Cotton Valley Trail. Contingent upon received an insurance certificate no later than 2 weeks prior to the event. Permit # 2022-22 Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

iii. The Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to consider a Temporary Event Permit for the New England Lyman Group to host Boat Show on June 11, 2022 from 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM at the Town Docks. Permit #2022-23

Chairman Murray opened the Public Hearing.

Betsy Bryan, co-chair of event, addressed the Board and stated the event would run the same as in years past, noting the NH Boat Museum will also have a static boat display at this event and the entire event is coordinated with Marine Patrol.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the Public Hearing. She noted the spots near the Gazebo are included, she also thanked the organization for sharing information about Milfoil during this event.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to grant Temporary Event Permit for the New England Lyman Group to host Boat Show on June 11, 2022 from 8:00 AM to 2:00 PM at the Town Docks. Permit #2022-23. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

3. Public Comment (limited to 3 minutes per person not to exceed 15 minutes)

None.

- 4. Bulk Vote
 - A. Weekly Manifests

i. February 18 2022 \$126,791.94

ii. February 25, 2022 \$ 278,632.16

iii. March 4, 2022 \$2,130,357.02

B. Property Tax Refund/Abatement(s)

i. 6 Orchards Rd 2021#25 Tax Map 236 Lot 16 ii Village Corner Rd 2021 #24 (part 1) Tax Map 77 Lot 20 iii. 23 Greenleaf Dr 2021 #22 Tax Map 242 Lot 18

C. Property Tax Credit/ Exemptions

i.8 Greenleaf Dr Tax Map 243 Lot 16

It was moved by Luke Freudenberg and seconded by Brian Deshaies to approve Bulk vote items A-C as above. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

- 5. Board/Committee Appointments: none
- 6. New Business

A. Approval: Commercial Vessel Landing Permit Winni Belle

John MacDonald addressed the Board to present the annual permit request on behalf of the Wolfeboro Inn. He stated they do work around the M/S Mt. Washington's schedule.

Chairman Murray noted they need to submit the insurance certificate before the season starts.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to issue a Commercial Vessel Landing Permit for the Winni Belle for the 2022 Winni Belle. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

B. Approval: Commercial Vessel Landing Permit M/S Mount Washington

Jared Maraio, Director of Communications, addressed the Board to make the request for the permit for the M/S Mt. Washington. He was pleased to announce that the vessel will be increasing its visits to Wolfeboro to six days per week July through October. He also noted this is the 150th anniversary of the Mount Washington.

Mr. Deshaies questioned if they could have a celebration at the Town docks.

Mr. Maraio stated they could discuss that, the GALA is scheduled for August 12th.

Chairman Murray stated it looks like the season begins with the Kingswood Prom on 5/7 with a minimal schedule through June then the full schedule begins.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to issue a Commercial Vessel Landing Permit of the M/S Mount Washington for the 2022 Season. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

C. Approval: 2022 Hawkers & Peddlers Permit Locations

Mr. Pineo stated this is the annual approval of the Town's four Hawkers and Peddlers locations.

Chairman Murray stated that Robert Dolengewicz d/b/a Hot Dog Bob renewed both his locations as usual this year and paid in full. Kurt DeVylder is not renewing the farm cart this season and Allie Cooper has applied for his spot which works better with her bike cart and paid in full. Spot #4 was advertised (in front of Cate Park) with applications as of the deadline.

The Board agreed to leave the open slot up on the website until filled.

It was moved by Brad Harriman and seconded by Dave Senecal to grant the following Hawkers and Peddler Permits for the 2022 Season May 1-Dec. 31st:

- 1. Location # 1 Robert Dolengewicz- a/k/a Hot Dog Bob
- 2. Location #2 Robert Dolengewicz-a/k/a Hot Dog Bob
- 3. Location #3 Allyn Cooper-a/k/a Allie Caps

Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

D. Approval: Request to Expend Capital Reserve Funds Highway & Solid Waste Vehicle Equipment \$106,175 for installation and purchase of new bailer at Solid Waste

Mr. Ford addressed the Board and thanked to the voters for supporting the town. He stated that this is to install and purchase a new bailer that has failed. This went out to bid, but in this case the highest bidder would be the best option.

Chairman Murray questioned if the fund has been replenished since the purchase of the truck and questioned if the next truck purchase is 2024?

Mr. Ford replied yes, the special purchase of the truck they just received has changed the scheduled for 2024. He state hopefully by then the cost of trucks and availability will be better.

Mr. Harriman stated he supports the use of Atlantic Recycling they have excellent quality service.

Mr. Deshaies questioned the life expectancy.

Mr. Ford replied 20 years.

It was moved by the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to authorize the Request to Expend Capital Reserve Funds Highway & Solid Waste Vehicle Equipment \$106,175 for installation and purchase of new bailer at Solid Waste. Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

E. ARPA Funding/ Bid Process-Public Works

Mr. Pineo introduced the topic with regards to the procurement policy and the inability to get equipment and complete projects in a timely fashion. He stated they are looking to waive the procurement policy based on working relationships with contractors. He stated the ARPA committee consisting of himself, the Finance Director, the Public Works Director, and a Selectmen representative (currently Brad Harriman) is in support of implementing a new section IV: F of the competitive procurement process to all for "best overall value".

Mr. Ford addressed the Board to explain they have really tried to use more local contractors for design build projects which saves money and allows projects to get done in a more timely fashion.

Mr. Pineo stated they will commit to providing quarterly updates to the Board.

Chairman Murray stated she would like to know the schedule of when those reports will be provided.

It was moved by Luke Freudenberg and seconded by Brian Deshaies for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to authorize the Town's ARPA sub-committee to determine the "best overall value" in the interest of securing, equipment, materials and contractors with a proven track record so that projects are able to move forward in a timely and cost effective manner to include quarterly capital project updates to keep the Board of Selectmen and taxpayers updated on progress.

F. Approval: 2022 Seasonal Road Posting-Public Works

Dave Ford addressed the Board to state that it is the time of year when they have to post the roads. Exceptions are made for oil delivery vehicles and school buses. He stated anyone who needs to pass on the roads should contact public works so they can work with them to the best time of day to travel the roads.

Chairman Murray thanked his staff for trying to makes some repairs up on Pleasant Valley Road it seems to be in tough shape.

Mr. Ford agreed, they are discussing solution to that road it has a lot of damage.

Mr. Deshaies questioned if speed bumps could be used to slow traffic in the area of Carry Beach.

Mr. Ford agreed that traffic calming is a problem, speed bumps are not recommended.

It was moved by Luke Freudenberg and seconded by Brian Deshaies for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to implement the 10 ton weight limit on town roads effective March 10th, 2022 until lifted by the Public Works Department .Members voted, being none opposed, the motion passed.

G. Discussion: Propose Police Station project update- Wolfeboro Police

Police Chief Dean Rondeau addressed the Board to review the propose plans for a new Police Station on North Main Street.

DISCUSSION:

Chairman Murray questioned if the shrubbery/trees is existing or plant new as the growth of new will take a while.

Chief Rondeau replied these will be planted.

Mr. Deshaies questioned if there are restrooms in the booking area.

Chief Rondeau replied yes.

Chairman Murray questioned if the holding cells are for overnight.

Chief Rondeau replied no, they will not have overnight they take them to the jail for that. This would be to hold multiple arrests.

Chairman Murray questioned the need for bunk rooms.

Chief Rondeau replied they are a small agency with 14 fulltime officers and 2 part time officers, there are times where multiple officers could be out and or inclement weather.

Chairman Murray questioned the estimated cost of the project.

Chief Rondeau replied it is in the range of \$6.1/6.2 million in today's dollars. He stated it out at the cost estimator at this time waiting that information.

Mr. Pineo stated that there are some adjustments that have made but no new price points have been provided as this date.

Mr. Senecal questioned the total square footage.

Mr. Pineo replied 13,560 square feet.

Mr. Deshaies questioned the square footage they have now.

Chief Rondeau replied he does not have that with him, but can provided it. He guesses it is probably half of that now. He stated the Public Safety Building is a good building, but it needs work and in order to do that they need to move out.

Mr. Deshaies questioned how long they have been there.

Chief Rondeau replied since about 1974, 50 years. He stated when he started with the department in 1996, they only three cruisers.

Chairman Murray noted some of the concerns of the location is it would create noise, but you indicated they would not be there and more out on the road.

Chief Rondeau replied yes, they are on the road most of the time and only at the station for a short time.

Mr. Senecal stated the Planning Board did provide feedback that lighting would need to be dark sky compliant.

Chief Rondeau replied they do want to be good neighbors and will comply.

Mr. Deshaies stated there are some rural development grants they should look into specifically for Public Safety Buildings.

Chief Rondeau replied he is aware of it and it is on the list to apply for.

Chairman Murray stated it is important the public know that information. She noted they do have a Public Safety Building committee made up of a budget committee members, board of selectmen members and staff.

Mr. Freudenberg stated now that this has passed, they really need to provide more information as there has been a lot of discussion on the location and they should make sure the voters are informed.

Chairman Murray questioned if this proposal is on the home page.

Mr. Pineo replied it is not.

Chairman Murray suggested it get put up, it is good information.

Chief Rondeau agreed they should do better getting the information out and he will do that. He stated the Committee looked as several sites but determined this to be the best fitting site.

H. Discussion: Request to offer Disc Golf at Abenaki Ski Area

Mr. Pineo stated that Mr. Towne and Mr. Woodard met with both himself and the Parks and Recreation Director on an idea of a possible disc golf course at Abenaki. He stated they are looking to see if the town would entertain this idea. He stated that although sounds like a great idea, he has concerns about the burden to staff and the impact to the spray fields and if that property could even be used for that purpose.

Steve Towne addressed the Board and stated both he and Keith Woodard are avid disc golfers and travel quite a ways to do this activity and thought it would be great to have it here in Wolfeboro. They also have two other volunteers Peter Goodwin and Gary Brenton.

Mr. Deshaies noted there are a number of courses listed in NH.

Mr. Towne stated many of those courses are limited, currently they travel to Limerick Maine to play.

Mr. Senecal questioned how many acres they need for this.

Mr. Town replied 15-20 acres for a small course and 25-30 acres for a large course. He noted they are flexible on the location.

Chairman Murray stated they are not a nonprofit, just some volunteers looking for a place.

Mr. Towne replied yes.

Chairman Murray stated that although the idea is great, she is not in favor of expanding the burden to the rec department at this time. She stated they are doing a study of the department reviewing the programs and the staffing. She stated she also has some concerns about the use of the spray fields for anything else but spraying.

Mr. Deshaies questioned how this would interact with the bike trails on this property.

Mr. Towne replied that it is common for them to co-mingle.

Mr. Deshaies stated he agrees with the concerns about the RIB site, the town also is dealing with the issue of bike trails being built out there without permission and this is the time to add to the area. He suggested approaching the Conservation Commission to see if they have any land that would be sufficient to use for this purpose.

Mr. Harriman agreed with the Board comments and also suggested reaching out to the Land Bank of Wolfeboro and Tuftonboro and the Lakes Region Conservation Trust who also may have land that could be used for this.

Mr. Towne questioned when the town would finish the study of the department.

Mr. Pineo replied the consultant is not able to do the study until late summer.

J. Approval: Letter to oppose HB 249 Short Term Rentals

Chairman Murray stated at the last meeting the Board discussed a draft letter to send to our Senators and House Representatives. He stated they seemed to be in agreement on not being in favor of restricting RSA 647:16. She stated they also have requested the Senator and Representative to attend the meeting on March 23rd.

Mr. Deshaies prefers to wait and hear from the representatives first.

Mr. Senecal agreed.

Mr. Harriman agreed with Chairman Murray this puts limits on the town and our representatives should know how we feel about this.

It was moved by Brad Harriman and seconded by Dave Senecal to sign the letter of concern to Senator Bradley and Representatives MacDonald and Deshaies and invite them to the Board's meeting on March 23, 2022. Members voted, Brian Deshaies-opposed, and all others in favor, the motion passed.

K. Discussion: Results of 2022 Town Vote

Mr. Pineo thanked the voters of Wolfeboro for approving all the financial warrant articles for the most party overwhelmingly. He stated there was 1,800 voters.

Chairman Murray stated 29% of the checklist was reported, which is high for the municipal election.

Mr. Senecal congratulated Brad Harriman on his re-election.

7. Other Business

None

8. Committee Reports

Mr. Harriman reported no meetings, just a long day at voting.

Chairman Murray reported two Pop Whalen meetings, a Library Trustees Meeting and Chamber quarterly meeting as well as voting day.

Mr. Deshaies reported he has been fielding some complaints from customers with regards to Breezeline Communications including one where they reportedly had no vaccinated employees that could enter a home for a repair but had an immunocompromised resident. He was able to find someone to remedy the solution and provide service to these residents. He stated he has a phone meeting with Breezeline communications tomorrow. He was also assisting a resident with an application to through the state for help with septic upgrade for low income residents.

Chairman Murray stated the town has not signed the new contract with Breezeline, those complaints should be given to Mr. Pineo to keep in the file for the Committee to review with Breezeline.

9. Town Manager's Report

Mr. Pineo reported the town will be moving forward with the bonds for July and more information will be provided in April.

Mr. Harriman stated that Michele Chamberlin did a great job keeping the Board informed during Mr. Pineo's absence.

10. Questions from the Press

None

11. Public Input (Limited to 3 minutes per person and not to exceed 15 minutes in total)

None.

12. Non-Public Session RSA 91-A:

Chairman Murray entertained a motion to enter into non-public session.

It was moved by Brian Deshaies and seconded by Luke Freudenberg to enter into nonpublic session under RSA 91-A to discuss pending litigation and personnel at 8:34 PM. Roll call vote, Brian Deshaies – yes, Linda Murray – yes, Brad Harriman – yes, Luke Freudenberg – yes and Dave Senecal – yes. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

The Board re-entered public session at 9:30 PM.

<u>Dave Senecal moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to seal the minutes of the March 9, 2022 non-public meeting. Luke Freudenberg seconded. Roll call vote, Brian Deshaies – yes, Linda Murray – yes, Brad Harriman – yes, Luke Freudenberg – yes and Dave Senecal – yes. Being none opposed, the motion passed.</u>

It was moved by Dave Senecal and seconded by Linda Murray to adjourn at 9:31 PM. Roll call vote, Brian Deshaies – yes, Linda Murray – yes, Brad Harriman – yes, Luke Freudenberg – yes and Dave Senecal – yes. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

Respectfully Submitted, Amelia Capone Muccio